
 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
 
To The Members of Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals 
Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows 
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and its profit, total 
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.  
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial statements section of 
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements. 
 
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon  
 
 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, 
Directors' report and its annexures, but does not include the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon.  
 

 Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 

 In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information  and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  
 

 If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.  

 
 



 

 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and 
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these financial statements.  
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate 
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.  
 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the management. 
 
 
 



 

 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors 
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to 
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 
 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.  
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.  
 
Other Matter  
 
The financial information of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2020 prepared in accordance 
with Ind AS included in the financial statements, representing the comparative and opening balances 
in these financial statements, were audited by the predecessor auditor. The audit report of the 
predecessor auditor dated 16 June 2020, on such financial information, expressed an unmodified 
opinion. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
1. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

 
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  
 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company.  
 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.  
 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply the Ind AS specified under 
section 133 of the Act. 
 



 

 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 
2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as 
on 31 March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the 
Act. 
 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy 
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial 
reporting.  
 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with 
the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 
 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us:  

 
(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial 

position in its financial statements. 
 

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts 
for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 
 

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

 
2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the 

Central Government in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.  

 
 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells 
Chartered Accountants 
(Firm’s Registration No. 008072S) 
 
 
 
 
Jaideep S. Trasi 
(Partner) 
(Membership No. 211095) 
(UDIN: 21211095AAAACI3151) 

 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 29 July 2021 



 

 

 
ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of 
our report of even date) 
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sri Sainatha Multispeciality 
Hospitals Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the 
standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 
 



 

 

 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
 
A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements. 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 
31 March 2021, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. 
 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells 
Chartered Accountants 
(Firm’s Registration No. 008072S) 
 
 
 
 
Jaideep S. Trasi 
(Partner) 
(Membership No. 211095) 
(UDIN: 21211095AAAACI3151) 

 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 29 July 2021 



 

 

 
ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of 
our report of even date)  
 
(i) (a)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 

quantitative details and situation of fixed assets. 
 

(b) The Company has a program of verification of fixed assets to cover all the items in a 
phased manner over a period of 2 years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having 
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the 
program, certain fixed assets were physically verified by the Management during the 
year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

 
(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties of freehold land and building 

and hence reporting under clause (i)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

(ii) As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the 
Management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical 
verification. 
 

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited 
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of 
the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provide guarantees and hence 
reporting under clause (iv) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted 
any deposit during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits as at 31 March 2021 
and therefore the provisions of clause (v) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section 
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of healthcare services rendered. We have 
broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies 
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the Central Government 
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, 
prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. We have, however, 
not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they 
are accurate or complete.  
 

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:  
 

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, 
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service 
Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax, cess and 
other material statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities. 
 

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ 
State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, 
Value Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in 
arrears as at 31 March 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they 
became payable. 



 

 

 
(c) There are no dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, 

Goods and Services Tax and Value Added Tax as on 31 March 2021 on account of 
disputes. 

  
(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 

has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to banks. The Company did not 
have any loans or borrowings from financial institutions and government. The Company has 
not issued any debentures.  
 

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised 
by way of term loans have been applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for 
which they were raised, other than temporary deployment pending application of 
proceeds. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer / further public 
offer (including debt instruments). 
 

(x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees 
has been noticed or reported during the year.   
 

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals 
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is 
not applicable.  
 

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is 
in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all 
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been 
disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards. 
 

(xiv) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement 
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year 
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or directors of 
its holding, subsidiary or associate company or persons connected with them and hence 
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable. 



 

 

 
(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 

India Act, 1934. 
 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells 
Chartered Accountants 
(Firm’s Registration No. 008072S) 
 
 
 
 
Jaideep S. Trasi 
(Partner) 
(Membership No. 211095) 
(UDIN: 21211095AAAACI3151) 

 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 29 July 2021 



Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Indian rupee thousands)

Note As at 
31 March 2021

As at 
31 March 2020

Assets 

Non-current assets 
Property, plant and equipment 4 2,36,278.48                   2,72,631.20                    
Right of use assets 33 41,612.72                     60,556.89                       
Other Intangible assets 5 960.53                          1,485.17                         
Financial assets

Loans 12 10,998.63                     10,791.03                       
Other financial assets 6 8,421.16                       6,174.67                         

Deferred tax assets(net) 29 0.01                              10,017.72                       
Income tax assets (net) 29 195.16                          42,056.30                       
Other non-current assets 7 2,845.49                       1,322.74                         
Total non-current assets 3,01,312.18                   4,05,035.72                    

Current assets 
Inventories 8 10,146.26                     11,787.02                       
Financial assets

Trade receivables 9 1,09,598.12                   1,64,568.53                    
Cash and cash equivalents 10 61,942.83                     1,464.21                         
Other bank balances 11 66,024.22                     10,206.51                       
Other financial assets 6 3,961.71                       2,416.25                         

Other current assets 7 2,719.41                       3,867.75                         
Total current assets 2,54,392.55                   1,94,310.27                    
Total assets 5,55,704.73                   5,99,345.99                    

Equity and liabilities 

Equity
Equity share capital 13 70,159.38                     70,159.38                       
Other equity 3,01,447.55                   2,44,819.51                    
Equity attributable to owners of company 3,71,606.93                   3,14,978.89                    

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities 
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 14 -                                16,373.35                       
Lease liabilities 33 39,299.93                     79,295.31                       
Other financial liabilities 15 -                                793.73                            

Provisions 17 6,485.55                       5,943.55                         
Total non-current liabilities 45,785.48                     1,02,405.94                    

Current liabilities 
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 14 -                                820.81                            
Lease liabilities 33 39,891.93                     40,173.97                       
Trade payables 18
  - Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 258.15                          -                                  
  - Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 88,727.16                     1,18,328.06                    
Other financial liabilities 15 5,617.73                       16,168.89                       

Other current liabilities 16 3,817.35                       5,081.43                         
Provisions 17 -                                1,388.00                         
Total current liabilities 1,38,312.32                   1,81,961.16                    

Total equity and liabilities 5,55,704.73                   5,99,345.99                    

Significant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements Note 1 to 41

As per our report of even date attached

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited
Firm registration number: 008072S CIN: U85110TG2007PTC054118

Jaideep S. Trasi Dr. G Satish Reddy Dr. B S V Raju
Partner                                                  Managing Director Director
Membership No.: 211095 DIN: 00459801 DIN: 02714821
Bengaluru Hyderabad Hyderabad
29 July 2021 29 July 2021 29 July 2021

Meenakshi Lakshmanan
Company Secretory
Membership No.A49609
Hyderabad
29 July 2021



Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Indian rupee thousands)

Note  Year ended 
31 March 2021 

 Year ended 
31 March 2020 

Income 
Revenue from operations 19 6,07,933.28                      5,53,163.17                            
Other income 20 6,153.24                           7,541.47                                 
Total income 6,14,086.52                      5,60,704.64                            

Expenses
Purchases of medicines and consumables 21 1,23,421.26                      1,16,000.49                            
Changes in inventories 22 1,640.76                           (2,312.19)                                
Professional fees to consultant doctors 23 1,03,644.30                      1,36,222.50                            
Laboratory outsourcing charges 24 11,653.80                         1,759.06                                 
Employee benefits expense 25 98,935.89                         1,12,687.44                            
Finance costs 26 10,265.17                         15,109.71                               
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 27 65,507.49                         65,232.90                               
Other expenses 28 1,23,313.19                      1,05,727.48                            
Total expenses 5,38,381.86                      5,50,427.39                            

75,704.66                         10,277.25                               
Tax expense

Current tax 29 17,937.00                         3,410.80                                 
Current tax for earlier years 29 (8,317.41)                          2,548.00                                 
Deferred tax 29 8,603.86                           (3,410.80)                                

Total Tax expense 18,223.45                         2,548.00                                 
57,481.21                         7,729.25                                 

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability (1,182.00)                          163.00                                    
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 328.83                              (42.38)                                     
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 56,628.04                         7,849.87                                 

Earnings per share (equity share of face value of INR 10 each) 31
Basic 8.19                                  1.10                                        
Diluted 8.19                                  1.10                                        

Significant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements Note 1 to 41

As per our report of even date attached

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited
Firm registration number: 008072S CIN: U85110TG2007PTC054118

Jaideep S. Trasi Dr. G Satish Reddy Dr. B S V Raju
Partner                                                  Managing Director Director
Membership No.: 211095 DIN: 00459801 DIN: 02714821
Bengaluru Hyderabad Hyderabad
29 July 2021 29 July 2021 29 July 2021

Meenakshi Lakshmanan
Company Secretory
Membership No.A49609
Hyderabad
29 July 2021

Profit before tax

Profit for the year



Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Indian rupee thousands)

 Year ended 
31 March 2021 

 Year ended 
31 March 2020 

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before exceptional items and tax 75,704.66                            10,277.25                                 
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 65,507.49                            65,232.90                                 
Finance costs 10,265.17                            15,109.71                                 
Interest income (1,150.05)                            (763.11)                                     
Interest income under the effective interest method (631.92)                               (587.26)                                     
Allowances for credit losses on financial assets 27,063.17                            9,993.46                                   
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 1,76,758.52                         99,262.95                                 
Movements in Working capital
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 27,907.24                            3,036.64                                   
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 1,640.76                              (2,312.19)                                  
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets (2,641.90)                            2,159.44                                   
(Increase)/decrease in loans and other current assets 1,572.66                              (185.92)                                     
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables (29,422.00)                          (30,834.26)                                
Increase/(decrease) in provisions (846.00)                               (849.76)                                     
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities (2,845.52)                            (10,049.44)                                
Cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 1,72,123.76                         60,227.46                                 
Taxes paid, net of refund received 32,802.24                            (7,481.45)                                  
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities (A) 2,04,926.00                         52,746.01                                 
Cash flows from investing activities
Movement in other bank balances and restricted deposits (55,817.71)                          4,088.15                                   
Interest received -                                      431.87                                      
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress (13,270.13)                          (15,126.55)                                
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities (B) (69,087.84)                          (10,606.53)                                

Cash flows from financing activities
Payment of lease liabilities (48,728.21)                          (28,746.93)                                
Finance cost (1,735.13)                            (4,035.51)                                  
Long term secured loans repaid (24,075.39)                          (6,667.27)                                  
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (C) (74,538.73)                          (39,449.71)                                
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 61,299.43                            2,689.77                                   
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 643.40                                 (2,046.37)                                  
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year* 61,942.83                            643.40                                      
*Cash and cash equivalents includes bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities for the year ended 31 March 2021

Fair value/other 
changes

Foreign exchange

Non-current borrowings (including current maturities)                24,075.39                     -   (24,075.39)            -                                                                 -   -                                            
Current borrowings                     820.81                     -   (820.81)                 -                                                                 -   -                                            
Lease liabilities             1,19,469.28                     -   (48,728.21)            8,450.79                                                         -   79,191.86                                 
Total 1,44,365.48                                -   (73,624.41)            8,450.79                                                         -   79,191.86                                 

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities for the year ended 31 March 2020

Fair value/other 
changes

Foreign exchange

Non-current borrowings (including current maturities)                30,742.66                     -   (6,667.27)              -                                                                 -   24,075.39                                 
Current borrowings                  5,036.48                     -   (4,215.67)              -                                                                 -   820.81                                      
Lease liabilities                            -                       -   (28,746.93)            1,48,216.21                                                    -   1,19,469.28                              
Total 35,779.13                                   -   (39,629.87)            1,48,216.21                                                    -   1,44,365.48                              

(Refer to note 10 - Cash and cash equivalents)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements Note 1 to 41

As per our report of even date attached
for Deloitte Haskins & Sells for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited
Firm registration number: 008072S CIN: U85110TG2007PTC054118

Jaideep S. Trasi Dr. G Satish Reddy Dr. B S V Raju Meenakshi Lakshmanan
Partner                                                  Managing Director Director Company Secretory
Membership No.: 211095 DIN: 00459801 DIN: 02714821 Membership No.A49609
Bengaluru Hyderabad Hyderabad Hyderabad
29 July 2021 29 July 2021 29 July 2021 29 July 2021

Particulars

 As at 
31 March 2021

Particulars
 As at 

1 April 2020
 Cash outflows 

 Non cash changes
 Cash inflows 

 As at 
31 March 2020

Particulars
 As at 

1 April 2019
 Cash inflows  Cash outflows 

 Non cash changes



Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Indian rupee thousands)

A Equity share capital

Note Equity shares Amount

Balance as at 1 April 2019 7,015.94                                  70,159.38                                                  
Changes in equity share capital during 2019-20 13 -                                          -                                                             
As at 31 March 2020 7,015.94                                  70,159.38                                                  

Changes in equity share capital during 2020-21 13 -                                          -                                                             
 As at 31 March 2021 7,015.94                                  70,159.38                                                  

B Other equity
Items of other comprehensive Income

Securities premium Retained earnings Remeasurement of net defined benefit 
liability/ (asset), net of tax

 Balance as at 1 April 2019                              2,73,423.75                                  22,308.46 -                                                                                                     2,95,732.21 
 Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2020 
Profit for the year -                                                                            7,729.25 -                                                                                                          7,729.25 
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year, net of tax -                                                                                      -                                                           120.62                                                120.62 
Total comprehensive income / (loss) -                                         7,729.25                                  120.62                                                       7,849.87                                            
Transferred to retained earnings -                                                                               120.62                                                       (120.62)                                                        -   
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Adjustment on initial application of Ind AS 116, net of tax -                                                                        (58,762.57) -                                                                                                      (58,762.57)
Total contributions by and distributions to owners -                                         (58,762.57)                               -                                                             (58,762.57)                                         

Balance as at 31 March 2020                              2,73,423.75                                (28,604.24)                                                                -                                           2,44,819.51 

 Balance as at 1 April 2020                              2,73,423.75                                (28,604.24)                                                                -                                           2,44,819.51 
 Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2021 
 Profit for the year -                                         57,481.21                                -                                                                                                        57,481.21 
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year, net of tax -                                                                                      -   (853.17)                                                                                                    (853.17)
Total comprehensive income / (loss) -                                         57,481.21                                (853.17)                                                      56,628.04                                          
Transferred to retained earnings -                                                                             (853.17) 853.17                                                                                                              -   
 Balance as at 31 March 2021                              2,73,423.75                                  28,023.80                                                                -                                           3,01,447.55 

The description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows:
Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements Note 1 to 41

As per our report of even date attached
for Deloitte Haskins & Sells for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited
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Membership No.: 211095 DIN: 00459801 DIN: 02714821 Membership No.A49609
Bengaluru Hyderabad Hyderabad Hyderabad
29 July 2021 29 July 2021 29 July 2021 29 July 2021

Total other equity attributable to 
equity holders of the Company

Particulars Reserves and surplus



Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupee thousands)

4 Property, plant and equipment
 Particulars  Leasehold 

improvements 
 Furniture and 

fixtures 
 Plant and 
equipment 

 Computer 
equipment 

 Medical equipment  Motor vehicles  Total 

Gross carrying value
Balance at 1 April 2019 1,97,955.48            14,824.74             67,541.80              6,041.92            1,67,476.48             937.51               4,54,777.93               
Additions -                          489.43                  320.41                   2,814.47            7,136.23                 -                     10,760.54                  
Disposals -                          -                        -                        -                     -                          -                     -                            
Balance at 31 March 2020 1,97,955.48            15,314.17             67,862.21              8,856.39            1,74,612.71             937.51               4,65,538.47               

Balance at 1 April 2020 1,97,955.48            15,314.17             67,862.21              8,856.39            1,74,612.71             937.51               4,65,538.47               
Additions -                          139.12                  289.04                   2,109.13            7,148.68                 -                     9,685.97                    
Disposals -                          -                        -                        -                     -                          -                     -                            
Balance at 31 March 2021 1,97,955.48            15,453.29             68,151.25              10,965.52          1,81,761.39             937.51               4,75,224.44               

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at 1 April 2019 67,088.73               4,394.29               15,575.47              2,690.69            57,044.47                764.70               1,47,558.35               
Depreciation for the year 25,206.05               1,324.49               3,968.13                1,728.00            13,087.64                34.61                 45,348.92                  
Balance at 31 March 2020 92,294.78               5,718.78               19,543.60              4,418.69            70,132.11                799.31               1,92,907.27               

Balance at 1 April 2020 92,294.78               5,718.78               19,543.60              4,418.69            70,132.11                799.31               1,92,907.27               
Depreciation for the year 26,567.07               1,330.93               4,276.84                2,047.09            11,816.76                -                     46,038.69                  
Balance at 31 March 2021 1,18,861.85            7,049.71               23,820.44              6,465.78            81,948.87                799.31               2,38,945.96               

Carrying amounts (net)
At 31 March 2021 79,093.63               8,403.58               44,330.81              4,499.74            99,812.52                138.20               2,36,278.48               
At 31 March 2020 1,05,660.70            9,595.39               48,318.61              4,437.70            1,04,480.60             138.20               2,72,631.20               



Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupee thousands)

5 Other Intangible assets

 Computer software 

Gross carrying value
Balance at 1 April 2019 1,146.42                         
Additions 1,658.56                         
Balance at 31 March 2020 2,804.98                         

Balance at 1 April 2020 2,804.98                         
Additions -                                 
Balance at 31 March 2021 2,804.98                         

Accumulated amortisation
Balance at 1 April 2019 1,019.21                         
Amortisation for the year 300.60                            
Balance at 31 March 2020 1,319.81                         

Balance at 1 April 2020 1,319.81                         
Amortisation for the year 524.64                            
Balance at 31 March 2021 1,844.45                         

Carrying amounts (net)
At 31 March 2021 960.53                            
At 31 March 2020 1,485.17                         



Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupee thousands)

 As at 
31 March 2021 

 As at 
31 March 2020 

6     Other financial assets
Non-current
Fixed deposits * 8,421.16                    6,174.67                         

8,421.16                    6,174.67                         

Current
Unsecured, considered good
Unbilled receivables 3,961.71                    2,416.25                         

3,961.71                    2,416.25                         
12,382.87                  8,590.92                         

7     Other assets
Non-current
Advances for capital goods 2,845.49                    1,322.74                         

2,845.49                    1,322.74                         

Current
Prepaid expenses 1,853.22                    3,511.33                         
Advance for supply of goods and services 814.91                       197.41                            
Other loans and advances 51.28                         159.01                            

2,719.41                    3,867.75                         
5,564.90                    5,190.49                         

8     Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Medicines and medical consumables                   10,146.26                         11,787.02 

10,146.26                  11,787.02                       

9     Trade receivables 
Current

considered good - Unsecured                1,43,095.95                      1,91,371.73 

Less: loss allowance                  (33,497.83)                       (26,803.20)

Net trade receivables 1,09,598.12               1,64,568.53                    

The Company's exposure to credit and currency risks and loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in note 37.

Particulars(Ageing) Gross receivables % of Provisions
Due date to 1 year 61,561.71                  16.55%
1-2 years 40,063.13                  25.11%
More than 2 years 41,471.11                  31.95%

10   Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks 61,143.46                                            1,215.09 

Cash on hand 799.37                       249.12                            
61,942.83                  1,464.21                         

11   Other bank balances
In deposit accounts (with remaining maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 
months)

66,024.22                  10,206.51                       

66,024.22                  10,206.51                       

12   Loans
Non-current
Unsecured, considered good
Rent and other deposits 10,998.63                  10,791.03                       

10,998.63                  10,791.03                       

* The above deposits are maintained against guarantees issued by Banks and are restricted for periods exceeding 12 months as at the Balance 
Sheet date.



Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupee thousands)

13   Share capital  Number of shares 
(in thousands) 

Amount  Number of shares 
(in thousands) 

Amount 

Authorised 
Class A Equity shares of INR 10 each 1.00                           10.00                1.00                          10.00                        
Class B Equity shares of INR 10 each 10,104.88                  1,01,048.76      10,104.88                 1,01,048.76              

10,105.88                  1,01,058.76      10,105.88                 1,01,058.76              

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
Class A Equity shares of INR 10 each 1.00                           10.00                1.00                          10.00                        
Class B Equity shares of INR 10 each 7,014.94                    70,149.38         7,014.94                   70,149.38                 

7,015.94                    70,159.38         7,015.94                   70,159.38                 

(a)
The Company has two classes of equity shares as follows

(b) 

Particulars
 Number of shares 

(in thousands) 
Amount

 Number of shares 
(in thousands) 

Amount

Class A equity shares of INR. 10 each fully paid-up held by
Aster DM Healthcare Limited, Holding and Ultimate holding company                             1.00                  10.00                            1.00                          10.00 

Class B equity shares of INR. 10 each fully paid-up held by
Aster DM Healthcare Limited, Holding and Ultimate holding company                      5,423.06           54,230.63                     5,423.06                   54,230.63 

 (c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Company 
Name of shareholder

 Number of shares %  Number of shares %

Class A equity shares of INR. 10 each fully paid-up held by
Aster DM Healthcare Limited 1.00                           100.00% 1.00                          100.00%

Class B equity shares of INR. 10 each fully paid-up held by
Aster DM Healthcare Limited 5,423.06                    77.30% 5,423.06                   77.30%
Dr. Srinivasa Venkataraju Balabhadra 392.97                       5.60% 342.97                      4.89%
Dr. Cherukupalli Raghu 372.97                       5.32% 322.97                      4.60%
Dr. Satish Reddy Gandavarapu 342.97                       4.89% 342.97                      4.89%
Mr. Sobhanprakash Puvvada 342.97                       4.89% 342.97                      4.89%

 (d) Shares reserved for issue under options and contracts: Nil

(e) Details of bonus shares issued during the past 5 years: Nil

(f) Details of shares issued for consideration other than for cash during the past 5 years: Nil

(g) Details of buyback of shares during the past 5 years: Nil

 As at 

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

 As at 

Class A equity shares: Class A equity shares are held by Aster DM Healthcare Limited. The holders of Class 'A' Equity Shares shall be entitled to 3,200 votes per Class 'A'
Equity Share on each item put to vote at the shareholders' meeting, such that the holders of Class 'A' Equity shares shall at all times have 51% of the voting rights in the
Company till the Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) Conversion Date. If the Company proposes to make a preferential/rights bonus issue of the Class 'A'
Equity Shares, the Company shall simultaneously issue to Aster DM Healthcare Limited such number Class 'A' Equity Shares such that the voting rights of Aster DM
Healthcare Limited post such preferential rights bonus shares issuance made by the Company in respect of Class 'A' Equity Shares in the Company shall be at least 51%. In
the event of any scheme, arrangement or amalgamation in accordance with the Act and subject to other approvals and other Applicable Law which presents for
amalgamation of the Company with or into any other entity and which results in a share swap or exchange of shares, Aster DM Healthcare Limited shall receive such
number of equity shares with differential voting rights or such other instrument of the other entity such that the voting rights of Aster DM Healthcare Limited in such other
entity shall not be less than 51%.

Class B Equity shares: Equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of
hands) is in proportion to the shareholders' share as specified in the share subscription agreement. Voting rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any call
or other sums presently payable have not been paid. Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares. In case of liquidation or winding up
of the Company, the distributions to the holders of equity shares shall, subject to the applicable provisions of the Act, only be made after the requisite distributions are
made to the holders of Class A equity shares.

 As at 
31 March 2020 

 As at 
31 March 2021 

Shares held by ultimate holding company
 As at 31 March 2021  As at 31 March 2020 



Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupee thousands)

 As at 
31 March 2021 

 As at 
31 March 2020 

14       Borrowings 
Non-current
Secured - at amortised cost
Term loans from bank -                               16,373.35                   
Current maturities of long term borrowings -                               7,702.04                     

-                               24,075.39                   
Less: Amount included under 'other financials liabilities' (refer note 15) -                               (7,702.04)                    

-                               16,373.35                   
Current
Secured - at amortised cost
Cash credit and overdraft facilities from banks -                               820.81                        

-                               820.81                        
Information about the Company's exposure to interest rate and liquidity risks are included in note 38.

A Details of securities, terms and conditions on loans 
1. Term loans from bank

2. Cash credit and overdraft facilities from banks

B

C

15       Other financial liabilities
Non-Current
Dues to creditors for capital goods -                               793.73                        

-                               793.73                        

Current
Current maturities of long-term borrowings* -                               7,702.04                     
Dues to related party (Refer note 34) 1,769.38                       3,350.82                     
Dues to creditors for capital goods 3,848.35                       5,116.03                     

5,617.73                       16,168.89                   

* The details of interest rates, repayment and other terms are disclosed in note 14

The Company’s exposure to currency and liquidity risk related to the above financial liabilities is disclosed in note 37

16       Other liabilities
Current
Advance received from customers -                               782.30                        
Statutory dues payables 3,817.35                       4,299.13                     

3,817.35                       5,081.43                     

17       Provisions 
Non-current
Provision for employee benefits
Net defined benefit liability - Gratuity 6,485.55                       5,943.55                     

6,485.55                       5,943.55                     
Current
Provision for employee benefits
Compensated absences -                               1,388.00                     

-                               1,388.00                     
6,485.55                       7,331.55                     

Employee benefits

a. Federal Bank
Equipment loan of INR 44,100,000 with balance outstanding of INR NIL (31st March 2020: INR 24,075,387) is to be re-paid in 84 equal monthly instalments of INR 731,884
each commencing from October 2016 with interest ranging from 9.52% p.a to 9.99% p.a. The loans were secured by hypothecation of medical equipments procured from the said
loans. The loan has been re-paid during the year.

b. Federal Bank 
The Company has availed working capital loan with balance outstanding of INR NIL (31st March 2020 : INR 820,813). These loans are repayable on demand and carries an
interest rate as MCLR + spread which has been 10% p.a during the year. The loan is secured by 10% margins on stock and receivables. The loan has been re-paid during the year.

There are no continuing defaults in the repayment of the principal loan and interest amounts.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, due to outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, RBI vide circular DOR.No.BP.BC.47/21.04.048/ 2019-20 dated 27 March 2020 has directed banks
and financial institutions to provide moratorium of 3 months to borrowers on all payments falling due between 1 March 2020 and 31 May 2020 and vide circular RBI/2019-
20/244 DOR.No.BP.BC.71/ 21.04.048/ 2019-20 for all payments falling due between 1 June 2020 and 31 August 2020 to all eligible borrowers classified as standard.
Accordingly, the Company has availed moratorium with respect to the principal and interest.

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (‘Gratuity Act’). Under the Gratuity Act, employee who has completed five years of 
service is entitled to specific benefit. The gratuity benefit provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of 
employment of an amount equivalent to 15 / 30 days’ salary payable for each completed year of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Company makes contributions 
to LIC of India. The Company has purchased an insurance policy to provide for payment of gratuity to the employees. Every year, the insurance company carries out a funding 
valuation based on the latest employee data provided by the Company. Any deficit in the assets arising as a result of such valuation is funded by the Company. Liabilities with 
regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation on the reporting date.



Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupee thousands)

Employee benefits (contd.)

Particulars  As at
31 March 2021 

 As at
31 March 2020 

Net defined benefit liability / (asset)
Present value of DBO 9,823.55                       7,205.55                     
Fair Value of Plan Assets 3,338.00                       1,262.00                     
Net defined benefit liability 6,485.55                       5,943.55                     

b. Reconciliation of present value of the defined benefit obligation

Particulars
 As at

31 March 2021 
 As at

31 March 2020 

Balance at the beginning of the year 7,205.55                       5,938.55                     
Benefits paid (715.00)                         (1,007.00)                    
Current service cost 1,741.00                       1,724.00                     
Past service cost -                               171.00                        
Interest cost 461.00                          433.00                        
Actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised in other comprehensive income

-                               -                             
1,881.00                       (885.00)                       
(704.00)                         831.00                        

(46.00)                           -                             
Balance at the end of the year 9,823.55                       7,205.55                     
Defined Benefit (liability) 9,823.55                       7,205.55                     

Reconciliation of the present value of plan assets
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,262.00                       1,074.00                     
Contribution by Employer by benefit payment 715.00                          1,007.00                     
Contribution by Employer into the fund 2,000.00                       -                             
Benefits paid (715.00)                         (1,007.00)                    
Interest income 81.00                            79.00                          

Return on Plan assets, excluding amount included in net interest on the 
net defined benefit loss/ (gain)

(5.00)                             109.00                        

Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets -                               -                             
Balance at the end of the year 3,338.00                       1,262.00                     

c. Expense recognized in the Statement of profit and loss
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
Current service cost 1,741.00                       1,724.00                     
Past service cost -                               171.00                        
Interest cost 380.00                          354.00                        
Gratuity cost 2,121.00                       2,249.00                     

Remeasurements recognised in Other comprehensive income
Actuarial gain/(loss) on defined benefit obligation (1,182.00)                      163.00                        

(1,182.00)                      163.00                        

d. Actuarial valuation

Investment risk

Interest rate risk
Longevity risk

Salary risk

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the
mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy
of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of
plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s
liability.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method. The defined 
benefit plan typically exposes the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

- changes in financial assumptions
- experience adjustments
Transfer in / Out

Based on an actuarial valuation, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Company’s financial statements as at balance sheet 

- changes in demographic assumptions

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability denominated in Indian Rupee is calculated using a
discount rate determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government
bonds. For other defined benefit plans, the discount rate is determined by reference to high quality
corporate bond yields when there is a deep market for such bonds; if the return on plan asset is below this
rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently the plan in India is investments in government securities and
other debt instruments.



Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupee thousands)

Employee benefits (contd.)
i). Actuarial assumptions
Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted average)

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2021 
 As at 

31 March 2020 
Discount rate 6.60% 6.40%
Future salary growth 10.00% 8.00%
Attrition rate  Below 35 yrs.: 35%

35 yrs. & above 3%  
 Below 35 yrs.: 35%
35 yrs. & above 3%  

Return on plan assets 6.40% 7.30%
Mortality rate IALM 2012-14 Ult IALM 2012-14 Ult
Weightage average duration of obligation 9 Years 8 Years

ii). Sensitivity analysis

Particulars
 Increase  Decrease  Increase  Decrease 

Future salary growth (1% movement) 1,273               1,089              831                               714                             
Discount rate (1% movement) 1,112               1,331              852                               717                             
Withdrawal rate (1% movement) 345                  388                 165                               150                             

iii). Expected contribution to the plan for the next annual reporting period
The company expects to contribute a sum of INR 300,000 to the plan for the next annual reporting period.

 Defined contribution plan
Expenses recognised in the profit and loss account
Particulars  Year ended 

31 March 2021 
 Year ended 

31 March 2020 

Contribution to provident fund                         5,633.04                      6,908.35 
Employee State Insurance                         1,467.21 1,947.74                     
Components recognised in the Statement of profit and loss                         7,100.25 8,856.09                     

18       Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 258.15                                                          -   
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 88,727.16                     1,18,328.06                

88,985.31                     1,18,328.06                

The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in note 37

Particulars
 For the year ended 

31 March 2021 
 For the year ended 

31 March 2020 
178.90                          -                             

0.56                              -                             
1,512.67                       -                             

78.69                            -                             

79.25                            
488.38                          409.13                        

Disclosures as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("the Act") based on the information available with the Company are given 

All trade payables are 'current'. The average credit period taken is 30-60 days.

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues
as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under the Act

The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year 
The interest due on the principal remaining outstanding as at the end of the year 
The amount of interest paid by the Company along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed
day during the year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under this Act

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year

 As at 31 March 2021

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and withdrawal rate. Reasonably possible
changes at the reporting date to one of the actuarial assumptions, holding all other assumptions constant would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown
below:

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the changes in assumptions would
occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has
been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability
recognised in the balance sheet. There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

 As at 31 March 2020

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set in accordance with the published statistics by the Life Insurance Corporation of India.
The Company assesses these assumptions with its projected long-term plans of growth and prevalent industry standards. The discount rate is based on the government securities
yield.
Gratuity is applicable only to employees drawing a salary in Indian rupees and there are no other foreign defined benefit gratuity plan.



Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupee thousands)

 Year ended 
31 March 2021 

 Year ended 
31 March 2020 

19   Revenue from operations 
Revenue from hospital and medical services 5,86,406.02                     5,26,909.23                  
Revenue from pharmacy sales 21,527.26                        26,253.94                     

6,07,933.28                     5,53,163.17                  

Refer notes below
(i) Category of Customers

Cash 3,16,565.25                     2,53,049.61                  
Credit 2,91,368.03                     3,00,113.57                  

6,07,933.28                     5,53,163.17                  

(ii) Nature of treatment
In- patient 4,86,552.56                     3,76,848.22                  
Out- patient 99,853.47                        1,50,061.00                  

5,86,406.02                     5,26,909.23                  

20   Other income 
Interest income under the effective interest method on:

Security Deposits 631.92                             587.26                          
Fixed deposits with banks 1,150.05                          763.11                          

Interest on income tax refund 2,605.84                          2,350.58                       
Other non-operating income 1,765.43                          3,840.52                       

6,153.24                          7,541.47                       

21   Purchases of medicines and consumables
Medicines and consumables 1,23,421.26                     1,16,000.49                  

1,23,421.26                     1,16,000.49                  

22   Changes in inventories
Opening stock 11,787.02                    9,474.83                   
Closing stock (10,146.26)                   (11,787.02)                

1,640.76                          (2,312.19)                     

23   Professional fees to consultant doctors 
Professional fees to consultant doctors 1,03,644.30                 1,36,222.50                  

1,03,644.30                     1,36,222.50                  

24   Lab Outsourcing Charges
Lab outsourcing charges 11,653.80                                            1,759.06 

11,653.80                        1,759.06                       

25   Employee benefits expense
Salaries and allowances 88,176.01                                             98,762.35 
Contribution to provident and other funds 7,100.24                                                  8,856.09 
Expenses related to post employment defined benefit plans (refer note 17) 2,121.00                                                  2,266.12 
Staff welfare expense 2,885.24                                                  2,442.57 
Expenses related to compensated absences (1,346.60)                                                    360.31 

98,935.89                        1,12,687.44                  

26   Finance cost
Interest on bank borrowings 1,405.76                          3,455.86                       
Interest on lease liabilities (Refer note 33) 8,450.79                          11,074.20                     
Other borrowing costs 408.62                             579.65                          

10,265.17                        15,109.71                     
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 Year ended 
31 March 2021 

 Year ended 
31 March 2020 

27   Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 4) 46,038.69                        45,348.91                     
Amortisation on intangible assets (refer note 5) 524.64                             300.60                          
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (refer note 33) 18,944.16                        19,583.39                     

65,507.49                        65,232.90                     

28   Other expenses 
Power, water and fuel 12,803.27                                             18,016.83 
Legal, professional and other consultancy (refer note 32) 9,903.61                                                  3,288.48 
Auditors remuneration (refer note 32) 850.00                             450.00                          
Rent (refer note 33) 7,468.66                                                  2,431.80 
Office and Administrative expenses 20,051.98                                             16,577.41 
Repairs and maintenance-Building 1,554.60                                                  2,353.86 
Repairs and maintenance-Medical equipments 9,065.10                                               14,761.86 
Repairs and maintenance-Others 4,697.95                                                  8,039.88 
Ambulance Hire Charges 13,042.38                                             11,541.05 
Rates and taxes 1,796.10                                                  6,936.40 
Allowances for credit losses on financial assets 27,063.17                                                9,993.46 
Travelling and conveyance 1,249.32                                                  2,443.49 
Insurance 1,133.42                                                     996.07 
Communication 8,355.71                                                  4,913.49 
Miscellaneous expenses 4,277.92                                                  2,983.40 

1,23,313.19                     1,05,727.48                  
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29 Income taxes

(a) Income tax assets/(liability) 

 As at 
31 March 2021 

 As at 
31 March 2020 

Income tax payments, including taxes withheld 18,132.16                  42,056.30                    
Less: Provision made towards tax liabilities (17,937.00)                -                               
Net income tax assets/(liability) at the end 195.16                       42,056.30                    

(b) Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss
 Year ended 

31 March 2021 
 Year ended 

31 March 2020 

Current tax 17,937.00                  3,410.80                      
Current tax for earlier years (8,317.41)                  2,548.00                      
Deferred tax (including MAT credit entitlement) 8,603.86                    (3,410.80)                     

Tax expense for the year 18,223.45                  2,548.00                      

(c) Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

 Year ended 
31 March 2021 

 Year ended 
31 March 2020 

Current tax                                -                                    -   
Current tax for earlier years                                -                                    -   
Deferred tax (including MAT credit entitlement)                        328.83 (42.38)                          
Tax expense for the year                        328.83                           (42.38)

(d) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Particulars  Year ended 
31 March 2021 

 Year ended 
31 March 2020 

Profit before tax                   75,704.66                      10,277.25 
Statutory income tax rate 27.82% 27.82%
Tax expenses /(asset)                   21,061.04                        2,859.13 
Un-recognised deferred tax assets                  (11,155.00)                      (2,859.13)
Tax expense of earlier years                     8,317.41                        2,548.00 
Income tax expense                   18,223.45                        2,548.00 

(All amounts in Indian rupee thousands)

The standard rate of corporation tax applied to reported profit is 27.82 per cent (2019-20: 27.82 per cent). The Company has not opted for concessional tax rate regime effective from 
financial year 2019-20.
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29 Income taxes (contd.)
(e) Movement in temporary differences:

Particulars Balance as at 1 
April 2021

Recognised in Statement 
of Profit and Loss

 Recognised through 
other comprehensive 

income 

 Balance as at 31 
March 2021 

MAT credit entitlement 10,060.10               (10,060.10)                                                      -                                    -   
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (3,571.45)                3,201.53                                                         -                           (369.92)
Trade receivables (loss allowances) 1,133.29                 (918.91)                                                           -                             214.38 
Provision for employee benefits 789.04                    (1,076.36)                                                328.83                             41.51 
Accrued employee benefits / payable to staff 1,606.73                 (1,492.69)                                                        -                             114.04 

Net deferred tax (liabilities) / assets 10,017.71               (10,346.53)                       328.83                       0.01                             

Particulars Balance as at 1 
April 2019

Recognised in Statement 
of Profit and Loss

 Recognised through 
other comprehensive 

income 

 Balance as at 31 
March 2020 

MAT credit entitlement 6,649.30                 3,410.80                                                         -                        10,060.10 
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (5,799.21)                2,227.76                                                         -                        (3,571.45)
Trade receivables (loss allowances) 2,147.42                 (1,014.13)                                                        -                          1,133.29 
Provision for employee benefits 1,653.23                 (821.81)                                                    (42.38)                           789.04 
Accrued employee benefits / payable to staff 1,998.55                 (391.82)                                                           -                          1,606.73 

Net deferred tax (liabilities) / assets 6,649.30                 3,410.80                          (42.38)                       10,017.72                    

(f) Deferred tax assets not recognised on grounds of prudence

Gross amount Deferred tax Gross amount Deferred tax
Deductible temporary differences                 15,710.86 4,369.76                                              5,189.98 1,442.85                      
Unabsorbed Depreciation U/s 32 - tax losses -                          -                                   17,675.08                  4,918.21                      
Impact on account of transition to Ind AS 116 58,762.57               16,347.75                        58,762.57                  16,347.75                    

Total 74,473.43               20,717.51                        81,627.63                  22,708.81                    

(g) Tax losses carried forward
Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was recognised expire as follows:

Tax loss Expire Tax loss Expire
Unabsorbed Depreciation U/s 32 -                          -                                   17,675.08                  Infinite period

Total tax losses carried forward -                          -                                   17,675.08                  

Particulars
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities related to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. The Company has recognised deferred tax assets arising out of tax losses
(unabsorbed depreciation) to the extent of net deferred tax liability on account of taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items: 

Particulars
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
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30 Contingent liabilities and commitments
Particulars  Year ended 

31 March 2021 
 Year ended 

31 March 2020 
Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided 
for (net of capital advances)

-                                6,382.93                         

Total -                                6,382.93                         

Contingent liabilities
Medical claims against the Company 9,682.42                        13,082.42                       
Total 9,682.42                        13,082.42                       

31 Earnings / (loss) per share 

Particulars  Year ended 
31 March 2021 

 Year ended 
31 March 2020 

                       57,481.21                          7,729.26 
                         7,015.94                          7,015.94 
                         7,015.94                          7,015.94 

Earnings / (loss) per share, basic 8.19                               1.10                                
Earnings / (loss) per share, diluted 8.19                               1.10                                

32 Payment to auditors (included under legal and professional charges, net of GST)
Particulars  Year ended 

31 March 2021 
 Year ended 

31 March 2020 
Statutory audit                            750.00                             450.00 
Tax Audit                            100.00                                     -   

Total                            850.00                             450.00 

33 Leases

Particulars  As at 
31 March 2021 

  As at
31 March 2020  

Opening balance 1,19,469.28                   1,37,142.01                    
Additions -                                -                                 
Finance cost accrued during the period (refer note 26) 8,450.79                        11,074.20                       
Payment of lease liabilities 48,728.21                      28,746.93                       

Closing balance 79,191.86                      1,19,469.28                    

Non-current lease liabilities 39,299.93                      79,295.31                       

Current lease liabilities 39,891.93                      40,173.97                       

(ii) Maturity analysis – contractual undiscounted cash flows

Less than one year 42,233.16                      51,303.75                       
One to five years 45,315.84                      84,980.81                       
More than five years -                                -                                 

Total undiscounted lease liabilities 87,549.00                      1,36,284.56                    

The calculation of profit attributable to equity share holders and weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the purpose of basic earnings per 
share calculations are as follows:

Particulars

a. On 28th February 2019, the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India has delivered a judgment clarifying the principles that need to be applied in determining the
components of salaries and wages on which Provident Fund (PF) contributions need to be made by establishments. Basis this judgment, the Company has re-
computed its liability towards PF from the month of March 2019 and has paid PF as per Supreme Court judgement. In respect of the earlier periods/years,
the Company has been legally advised that there are numerous interpretative challenges on the application of the judgment retrospectively. Based on such
legal advice, the management believes that it is impracticable at this stage to reliably measure the provision required, if any, and accordingly, no provision
has been made towards the same. Necessary adjustments, if any, will be made to the books as more clarity emerges on this subject.

b. The Company does not have any long-term commitments or material non-cancellable contractual commitments/contracts, including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

Net profit / (loss) for the year, attributable to the equity share holders
Weighted average number of equity shares of INR 10 each used for calculation of basic earning per 
Weighted average number of equity shares of INR 10 each used for calculation of diluted earning per 

(i) Lease liabilities
Following are the changes in the lease liabilities for the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020:

c. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as 
contingent liability where applicable, in its financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially 
adverse effect on its financial position. The Company does not expect any reimbursement in respect of the above contingent liabilities.

 As at 
31 March 2021 

The Company has taken hospital premises on lease from various parties from where healthcare and management services are rendered. The leases typically 
run for a period of 1 year - 5 years. Lease payments are renegotiated nearing the expiry to reflect market rentals.

  As at
31 March 2020  
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33 Leases (contd.)
(iii) Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are presented on the balance sheet.

Gross carrying value
Opening balance 80,140.27                      80,140.27                       
Addition to right-of-use assets -                                -                                 
Total gross carrying value -                                80,140.27                       

Accumulated Depreciation
Opening balance 19,583.39                      -                                 
Depreciation for the year (refer note 27) 18,944.16                      19,583.39                       

Total accumulated Depreciation 38,527.55                      19,583.39                       

Net Balance 41,612.72                      60,556.89                       

(iv) Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss
 Year ended 

31 March 2021 
 Year ended 

31 March 2020 
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 18,944.16                      19,583.39                       
Interest on lease liabilities 8,450.79                        11,074.20                       
Lease rental expenses for lease where Ind AS 116 is not applicable 7,468.66                        2,431.80                         

34,863.61                      33,089.39                       

(v) Amounts recognised in statement of cash flows
 Year ended 

31 March 2021 
 Year ended 

31 March 2020 
Total cash outflow for leases 48,728.21                      28,746.93                       

48,728.21                      28,746.93                       

 As at 
31 March 2021 

  As at
31 March 2020  

Particulars
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34 Related parties

(i) Names of related parties and description of relationship with the Company:

(a) Holding Company Aster DM Healthcare Limited, India
(c) Fellow Subsidiaries Malabar Institute of Medical Sciences Ltd

Aster Clinical Lab LLP

(d) Key managerial personnel and their relatives (KMP)
Dr. Satish Reddy Gandavarapu (Managing Director)
Dr. C. Raghu (Director)
Dr. Raju B S V (Director)
Mr. Sobhanprakash Puvvadu (Director)
Mr. Sreenath Reddy (Director)
T J Wilson (Director)
Vikram Singh Beniwal(till 16th August, 2020) (Director)
Dr. Uma Sreedevi (Wife of Dr. C Raghu)
Dr. B Susmitha (Wife of Dr. Raju B S V)
Dr. Anvesh (Son of Dr. Raju B S V)

(ii) Related party transactions:

Year ended 
31 March 

2021

Year ended 
31 March 

2020

As at 
31 March 

2021

As at 
31 March 

2020
1 Professional fee** 3,092.98         8,006.54         (91.34)             (297.47)           
2 Professional fee** 10,733.51       12,758.13       (256.88)           (1,015.66)        
3 Professional fee** 4,728.74         10,149.99       (163.29)           (757.52)           
4 Professional fee** 2,632.35         2,437.30         (200.91)           (200.09)           
5 Professional fee** 1,423.17         1,347.87         (62.26)             (123.03)           

Re-imbursement of expense 3,710.36         1,473.32         (793.33)           (3,390.82)        
20.20              -                  -                  -                  

7 Aster Clinic Lab LLP Labs Testing fees 4,194.26         -                  (976.05)           -                  
8 Malabar Institute of Medical Sciences Limited Re-imbursement of expense -                  40.00              -                  40.00              
9 Dr. Anvesh Re-imbursement of expense 824.33            -                  -                  -                  

**The remuneration is paid to the directors in their professional capacity as doctors.

35 Segment reporting

Sl. No. Name of related party Nature of transactions

Related party transactions Outstanding balance 

* The above figure does not include provision for gratuity as the same is determined for the Company as a whole based on an actuarial valuation. 

Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment” (“Ind AS 108”) establishes standards for the way that public business enterprises report information about operating segments and related
disclosures about products and services, geographic areas, and major customers. Based on the "management approach" as defined in Ind AS 108, Operating segments are to
be reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM evaluates the Company's performance
and allocates resources on overall basis. The Company’s sole operating segment is therefore ‘Medical and Healthcare Services’. Accordingly, there are no additional
disclosure to be provided under Ind AS 108, other than those already provided in the financial statements.
The Company operates in India and revenue generations is from a wide spread of the customers and hence the group wide disclosures of major customers are not applicable.

Dr. Satish Reddy
Dr. C Raghu
Dr. Raju B S V
Dr. Uma Sreedevi
Dr. B Susmitha
Aster DM Healthcare Limited

Corporate Guarantee Commission
6
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36 Capital management

Particulars As at 
31 March 

2021

As at 
31 March 

2020
##########      3,14,978.89 

As a percentage of total capital 100% 93%
-             24,896.20       

As a percentage of total capital 0% 7%
Total capital (Equity and Borrowings) ##########      3,39,875.09 

37 Financial Instruments- Fair values and risk management
A Accounting classifications and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy.

 As at 31 March 2021
Particulars Note

Financial assets 
at amortised cost

Mandatorily 
at FVTPL

Other financial liabilities 
at amortised cost

Total 
Carrying value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets
Financial assets not measured at fair value
(i) Loans 12 10,998.63           -                  -                                     10,998.63       -             -             -             -                  
(ii) Other financial assets 6 12,382.87           -                  -                                     12,382.87       -             -             -             -                  
(iii) Trade receivables 9 1,09,598.12        -                  -                                     1,09,598.12    -             -             -             -                  
(iv) Cash and cash equivalents 10 61,942.83           -                  -                                     61,942.83       -             -             -             -                  
(v) Other bank balances 11 66,024.22           -                  -                                     66,024.22       -             -             -             -                  
Total financial assets 2,60,946.67        -                  -                                     2,60,946.67    -             -             -             -                  
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Non-current 
(i) Borrowings 14 -                      -                  -                                     -                  -             -             -             -                  
(ii) Lease liabilities 33 -                      -                  79,191.86                          79,191.86       -             -             -             -                  
(iii) Other financial liabilities 15 -                      -                  5,617.73                            5,617.73         -             -             -             -                  
(iv) Trade payables 18 -                      -                  88,985.31                          88,985.31       -             -             -             -                  
Total -                      -                  1,73,794.90                       1,73,794.90    -             -             -             -                  

 As at 31 March 2020

Particulars

Note
Financial assets 

at amortised cost
Mandatorily 

at FVTPL
Other financial liabilities 

at amortised cost
Total 

Carrying value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets
Financial assets not measured at fair value
(i) Loans 12 10,791.03           -                  -                                     10,791.03       -             -             -             -                  
(ii) Other financial assets 6 8,590.92             -                  -                                     8,590.92         -             -             -             -                  
(iii) Trade receivables 9 1,64,568.53        -                  -                                     1,64,568.53    -             -             -             -                  
(iv) Cash and cash equivalents 10 1,464.21             -                  -                                     1,464.21         -             -             -             -                  
(v) Other bank balances 11 10,206.51           -                  -                                     10,206.51       -             -             -             -                  
Total financial assets 1,95,621.20        -                  -                                     1,95,621.20    -             -             -             -                  
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Non-current 
(i) Borrowings 14 -                      -                  24,896.20                          24,896.20       -             -             -             -                  
(ii) Lease liabilities 33 -                      -                  1,19,469.28                       1,19,469.28    -             -             -             -                  
(iii) Other financial liabilities 15 -                      -                  9,260.58                            9,260.58         -             -             -             -                  
(iv) Trade payables 18 -                      -                  1,18,328.06                       1,18,328.06    -             -             -             -                  
Total -                      -                  2,71,954.12                       2,71,954.12    -             -             -             -                  

Carrying amount Fair value

Total equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company

The Company's policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors capital 
on the basis of return on capital employed as well as the debt to total equity ratio.
For the purpose of debt to total equity ratio, debt considered is long-term and short-term borrowings. Total equity comprise of issued share capital and all other equity reserves.

Long-term borrowings including current maturities

The capital structure as of 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020,was as follows:

Carrying amount Fair value
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37 Financial risk management
B The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. 

ii) Credit Risk

The movement in lifetime ECL in respect of trade and other receivables during the year was as follows:

26,803.20                  44,876.88           
Disallowances offset (20,368.54)                 28,067.14           

27,063.17                  9,993.46             
33,497.83                  26,803.20           

iii) Liquidity Risk 

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March 2021:
Less than 1 year More than 1 year

Total

              42,233.16                    45,315.84            87,549.00 
              88,985.31 -                                        88,985.31 

5,617.73                -                                          5,617.73 

Total            1,36,836.20                    45,315.84         1,82,152.04 

Less than 1 year More than 1 year
Total

Loans                           -                      10,998.63            10,998.63 
Other financial assets                 3,961.71                      8,421.16            12,382.87 
Trade receivables            1,09,598.12                                -           1,09,598.12 
Cash and cash equivalents               61,942.83 -                                        61,942.83 
Other bank balances 66,024.22              -                                        66,024.22 

Total            2,41,526.88                    19,419.79         2,60,946.67 

i) Risk management framework
The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework. The Company’s audit and risk management
committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation
to the risks faced by the Company. The committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management
controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit and risk management committee.

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to financial loss. The credit risk arises principally
from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its investing activities, including deposits with banks and other financial instruments. 

Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for 
credit. The collection from trade receivables are monitored on a continuous basis by the receivables team.
The Company always measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The expected credit losses on trade receivables are estimated using a 
provision matrix by reference to past default experience of the debtors and an analysis of the debtors' current financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, 
general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate, and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

Balance at the end

The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables amounting to INR. 109,598.12 (31 March 2020: INR. 164,568.53) and unbilled 
receivables amounting to INR. 3,961.71 (31 March 2020: INR. 2,416.25).

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances is limited as the Company generally transacts with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by
international and domestic credit rating agencies.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for
management of the Company’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Company's reputation.

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Allowance for Credit Loss

Balance at the beginning

The Company is using the cash inflows from the financial assets and the available bank facilities to manage the liquidity. The table below provides the cash inflows from significant 
financial assets as of 31 March 2021:

Particulars

Impairment loss recognised

No single customer accounted for more than 10% of the revenue as of 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020. There is no significant 

Particulars

Lease liabilities
Trade Payables
Other financial liabilities (excluding borrowings and trade payables)
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37 Financial risk management
The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March 2020:

Less than 1 year More than 1 year
Total

                8,522.85                    17,846.95            26,369.80 
              51,303.75                    84,980.81         1,36,284.56 
           1,18,328.06                                -              82,815.92 
                8,466.85                         793.73              9,260.58 

Total            1,86,621.51                 1,03,621.49         2,54,730.86 

Less than 1 year More than 1 year
Total

Loans                           -                      10,791.03            10,791.03 
Other financial assets                 2,416.25                      6,174.67              8,590.92 
Trade receivables            1,64,568.53                                -           1,64,568.53 
Cash and cash equivalents                 1,464.21 -                                          1,464.21 
Other bank balances               10,206.51 -                                        10,206.51 

Total            1,78,655.50                    16,965.70         1,95,621.20 

iv) Market Risk

Interest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing instruments as reported to management is as follows:

Particulars  31 March 2021  31 March 2020
Variable rate long term borrowings including current maturities -                      24,896.20              

Sensitivity analysis

Particulars  31 March 2021  31 March 2020  31 March 2021  31 March 2020
Sensitivity
1% increase in MCLR rate -                       248.96                  -                      248.96                   
1% decrease in MCLR rate -                       (248.96)                 -                      (248.96)                 

vi) Foreign currency risk

Financial assets of INR 260,946.67 (including restricted deposits of INR 8,421.16 Crore) as at 31 March 2021 carried at amortised cost is in the form of cash and cash equivalents, 
deposits, etc. where the Company has assessed the counterparty credit risk. Trade receivables of INR 109,598.12 as at 31 March, 2021 carried at amortised cost and is valued 
considering provision for allowance using expected credit loss method (if any). In addition to the historical pattern of credit loss, we have considered the likelihood of increased credit 
risk and consequential default considering emerging situations due to COVID-19. This assessment is not based on any mathematical model but an assessment considering the impact 
immediately seen in the demand outlook and the financial strength of the customers in respect of whom amounts are receivable. The Company has specifically evaluated the potential 
impact with respect to Healthcare service sector. The Company closely monitors its customers who are being impacted. 

Borrowings (including current portion)

The Company is using the cash inflows from the financial assets and the available bank facilities to manage the liquidity. The table below provides the cash inflows from significant 
financial assets as of 31 March 2020:

Particulars

Particulars

Lease liabilities (including current portion)
Trade Payables
Other financial liabilities (excluding borrowings and trade payables)

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rate. The majority of the
Company's assets are located in India and Indian rupee being the functional currency for the Company. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates is
minimal and not significant.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
and equity prices. 

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because the Company borrows funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. The Company's significant interest rate risk arises from
long-term borrowings with variable interest rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate on the Company’s financial instruments is based on
market rates. The Company monitors the movement in interest rates on an ongoing basis. The risk is managed by the Group by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and
floating rate borrowings.

Impact on Profit or (Loss) Impact on equity, net of tax

The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the reporting date was outstanding for the whole year. A one per cent increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates. The Company's
sensitivity to interest rates has increased in the current year due to the additional variable rate long term borrowings taken during the year.



Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees thousands, except share data and where otherwise stated)

38

39

40
(a)

(as previously stated) (as restated)
Other Expenses 5,52,186.45                       5,50,427.39                  

-                                     1,759.06                       

(b)

(as previously stated) (reclassification) (as restated)
Other bank balances 16,141.60                          (5,935.09)                      10,206.51                    

11,030.61                          (4,855.94)                      6,174.67                      
-                                     10,791.03                     10,791.03                    
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for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited
CIN: U85110TG2007PTC054118

Dr G Satish Reddy Dr. B S V Raju Meenakshi Lakshmanan
Managing Director Director Company Secretory
DIN: 00459801 DIN: 02714821 Membership No.A49609
Hyderabad Hyderabad Hyderabad
29 July 2021 29 July 2021 29 July 2021

Year Ended 31 March 2020

In March 2020, the World Health Organisation declared COVID-19 to be a pandemic. This pandemic resulted in disruption to regular business operations due to lockdown,
disruptions in transportation, travel bans, quarantines, social distancing and other emergency measures imposed by the government. The Company adopted measures to curb the
spread of infection in order to protect the health of its employees and ensure business continuity with minimal disruption and has considered available internal and external
information up to the date of approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors. The Company has used the principles of prudence in applying judgements, estimates
and assumptions including sensitivity analysis and the Company has evaluated impact of the pandemic in assessing the recoverability of property plant and equipment (including
Capital work in progress), investments, intangibles, inventories, receivables and other assets based on its review of current indicators of future economic conditions. Based on
current estimates, including the availability of financing facilities for maintaining liquidity, the Company expects to fully recover the carrying amount of these assets. Further, the
Company has taken various measures to reduce its fixed cost - for example, salary reductions, optimization of administrative, sales and marketing costs, deferment of capex along
with judicious resource allocation and requesting for the waiver of minimum guarantee fee and revenue share for hospital premises taken on lease. The eventual outcome of
impact of the global health pandemic may be different from that which has been estimated as on the date of approval of these financial statements. The Company will continue to
monitor any material changes to future economic conditions and the consequent impact on its business, if any, and any significant impact of these changes would be recognized in
the financial statements as and when these material changes to economic conditions arise.

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 and Code on Wages, 2019 ['Codes'] relating to employee benefits during employment and post-
employment benefits in September 2020 and the same has received Presidential Assent. The Codes have been published in the Gazette of lndia. However, the date on which the 
Codes will come into effect has not yet been notified. The Company will need to assess the impact of the above. The impact will be recorded in the first period after the Codes 
become effective.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2020, were audited by B S R & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has made the following reclassifications. Comparative numbers have been reclassified accordingly.

Particulars Year Ended 31 March 2020

Laboratory Outsourcing Charges

The Company has disclosed laboratory outsourcing charges as a separate item of expenditure previously included in other expenses. Comparative numbers have been reclassified 
accordingly.

The Company has disclosed margin money deposits against bank guarantees issued by the banks which are lien marked with Government authorities as other non-current financial 
assets previously included in other bank balances. The Company has disclosed security and rental deposits as non-current loans previously included in other non-current financial 
assets. Comparative numbers have been reclassified accordingly.

Particulars

Other non-current financial assets
Non-current loans
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1. Company overview 

Sri Sainatha Multispeciality Hospitals Private Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated on 24 
May 2007 as a private limited company. The Company domiciled in India, with its registered 
office situated at P-4, Besides Blue Fox Hotel, Mythri Vihar, Ameerpet, Hyderabad, Telangana. 
The Company primarily carries on the business of rendering healthcare and allied services in 
India. The Company is a subsidiary of Aster DM Healthcare Limited. 

2. Basis of preparation  

A. Statement of compliance 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting 
Standards(“Ind AS”) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 
amended, and the relevant amended rules prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 
2013, read with relevant rules issued thereunder. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 29 
July 2021. 

Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in Note 3. 

B. Functional and presentation currency 

These Financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s 
functional currency. All amounts are presented in Indian Rupees in thousands, unless otherwise 
stated. 

C. Basis of measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following 
items: 

Items Measurement basis 

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value 

Net defined benefit liability 
Fair value of plan asset less present value of defined 
benefit obligations 

D. Use of estimates and judgements 

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.  

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed by the management on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively. 

Judgements, Assumptions and estimation uncertainties 

Information about judgements, assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant 
risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the year ended 31 March 2021 is included in the 
following notes: 
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2. Basis of preparation (continued) 

D. Use of estimates and judgements (continued) 

- Note 4 and 6 - Measurement of useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment 
and intangible assets; 

- Note 18 - Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions; 
- Note 28 - Recognition of deferred tax asset: availability of future taxable profit against which 

tax losses carried forward can be used; 
- Note 29 - Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions 

about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources; 
- Note 36 - Impairment of financial assets; 
- Note 5 & 32 - Leases 

Estimation uncertainties relating to COVID-19 

In March 2020, the World Health Organisation declared COVID-19 to be a pandemic. This 
pandemic resulted in disruption to regular business operations due to lockdown, disruptions in 
transportation, travel bans, quarantines, social distancing and other emergency measures imposed 
by the government. The Company adopted measures to curb the spread of infection in order to 
protect the health of its employees and ensure business continuity with minimal disruption and 
has considered available internal and external information upto the date of approval of the 
financial statements by the Board of Directors. The Company has used the principles of prudence 
in applying judgements, estimates and assumptions including sensitivity analysis and the 
Company has evaluated impact of the pandemic in assessing the recoverability of property plant 
and equipment (including Capital work in progress), investments, intangibles, inventories, 
receivables and other assets based on its review of current indicators of future economic 
conditions. Based on current estimates, including the availability of financing facilities for 
maintaining liquidity, the Company expects to fully recover the carrying amount of these assets. 
Further, the Company has taken various measures to reduce its fixed cost - for example, salary 
reductions, optimization of administrative, sales and marketing costs, deferment of capex along 
with judicious resource allocation and requesting for the waiver of minimum guarantee fee and 
revenue share for hospital premises taken on lease. The eventual outcome of impact of the global 
health pandemic may be different from that which has been estimated as on the date of approval 
of these financial statements. The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to 
future economic conditions and the consequent impact on its business, if any, and any significant 
impact of these changes would be recognized in the financial statements as and when these 
material changes to economic conditions arise. 

a. Measurement of fair values 

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair 
values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established 
control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. Significant valuation issues 
are reported to the Company’s audit committee. 
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2. Basis of preparation (continued) 

D. Use of estimates and judgements (continued) 

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used 
in the valuation techniques as follows: 

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset 
or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). 

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs). 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market 
data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall 
into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in 
its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant 
to the entire measurement. 

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the 
reporting period during which the change has occurred. 

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the 
following notes: 

- Financial instruments; 

- Fair value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 

b. Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

Amendments 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing 
standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable from 1 April 2021. 

On 24 March 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) through a notification, amended 
Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division I, II and III of 
Schedule III and are applicable from April 1, 2021. The Company is evaluating the effect of the 
amendments on its financial statements. 

3. Significant accounting policies  

3.1 Property, plant and equipment 

i. Recognition and measurement 

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost which includes capitalised borrowing 
costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.  

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import 
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes , after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any 
directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and 
estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. 
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)  

3.1 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of 
materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working 
condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and 
restoring the site on which it is located. 

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then 
they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.  

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss. 

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment, outstanding at each 
balance sheet date are shown under other non-current assets. The cost of property, plant and 
equipment not ready for its intended use at each balance sheet date are disclosed as capital work-
in-progress. 

ii. Subsequent expenditure and derecognition 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits 
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company. 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The gain or loss 
arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of profit 
and loss. 

iii. Depreciation  

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment are provided on the straight-line method over the 
useful lives of the assets estimated by the Management. Depreciation for assets purchased / sold 
during a period is proportionately charged. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lease 
term or useful lives of assets, whichever is lower. The estimated useful lives of items of property, 
plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as follows: 

Class of assets Useful life 

Plant and equipment 15 

Medical equipment* 10-13 
Motor vehicles * 5 
Computer equipment 3 
Furniture and fixtures * 5-10 

 
* For the above-mentioned classes of assets, the Company believes that the useful lives as given 
above best represent the useful lives of these assets based on internal assessment and supported 
by technical advice, where necessary, which is different from the useful lives as prescribed under 
Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and 
adjusted if appropriate.  
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)  

3.2 Intangible assets 

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets are amortised 
over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, commencing from 
the date the asset is available to the Company for its use and is included in depreciation and 
amortisation expenses in statement of profit and loss. The estimated useful life and amortisation 
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate 
being accounted for on a prospective basis. The estimated useful life of Software is 3 years.  

The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors 
including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as 
the stability of the industry and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance 
expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset. 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits 
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in statement 
of profit and loss as incurred. 

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected 
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured 
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are 
recognised in statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised. 

3.3 Inventories 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories 
comprises purchase price, and other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition. The Company uses the weighted average method to determine the cost of 
inventory consisting of medicines and medical consumables.  

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the 
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The comparison 
of cost and net realisable values is made on an item-by-item basis. 

3.4 Impairment 

i. Impairment of financial assets 

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on financial assets 
measured at amortised cost. 

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost 
are credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit impaired’ when one or more events that have a 
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. 

The Company always measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal to 
lifetime ECL. The expected credit losses on trade receivables are estimated using a provision 
matrix by reference to past default experience of the debtors and an analysis of the debtors' current 
financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic 
conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate, and an assessment of both the current as 
well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date. 
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)  

3.4 Impairment (continued) 

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the 
maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk. 

 Measurement of expected credit losses 

Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are 
measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e., the difference between the cash flows 
due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects 
to receive). 

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet: 

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross 
carrying amount of the assets. 

Write-off: 

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the 
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company 
determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient 
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write off.  

ii. Impairment of non- financial assets 

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed 
at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such 
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated to determine the extent of 
impairment loss, if any.  

iii. Impairment of non- financial assets (continued) 

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together 
into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that 
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.  

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its 
fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted 
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the 
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset). 

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. 
For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount i.e., the higher of the fair value 
less cost to sell and the value-in-use is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset 
does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, 
the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. 

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the statement of 
profit and loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the 
estimated recoverable amount of the asset.  
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

3.4 Impairment (continued) 

An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change in 
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset is 
increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization or 
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. 

3.5 Employee benefits 

Short term employee benefits 

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are 
classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and 
ex-gratia. Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and 
are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected 
to be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the amount 
of obligation can be estimated reliably. 

Post-employment benefits 

Defined contribution plans 

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed 
contributions and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The 
Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered provident 
fund scheme.  

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit 
expense in the statement of profit and loss in the periods during which the related services are 
rendered by employees. 

Defined Benefit plans 

Under a defined benefit plan, it is the Company’s obligation to provide agreed benefits to the 
employees. 

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using 
the projected unit credit method. 

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses 
are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI) in the period in which they occur. 
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset) recognised in other comprehensive 
income shall not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss in a subsequent period. However, 
the Company transfers those amounts recognised in other comprehensive income within equity. 
The Company determines the net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability for the period 
by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of 
the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the 
net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. 
Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss. 
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

3.5 Employee benefits (continued) 

Other long-term employee benefits 

The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-
employment benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their 
service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, 
and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The obligation is measured on the basis of an 
annual independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurement 
gains or losses are recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. 

Compensated absences 

With effect from 31 March 2020, the Company does not have any long-term employee benefits 
under compensate absences due to change in policy for compensated absences.  

3.6 Provisions (other than employee benefits) 

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or 
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision 
is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the reporting 
date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision 
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is 
the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material). 

A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the 
Company from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under 
the contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the present value of the lower 
of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the 
contract. Before such a provision is made, the Company recognises any impairment loss on the 
assets associated with that contract. 

3.7 Revenue  

Revenue from contract with customers 

The Company generates revenue from rendering of medical and healthcare services, sale of 
medicines and other related activities. Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue 
is recognised. Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of the 
goods or services.  

Disaggregation of revenue 

The Company disaggregates revenue from hospital services (medical and healthcare services), sale of 
medicines and other operating income. The Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how 
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of Company’s revenues and cash flows are affected by industry, 
market and other economic factors. 
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

3.7 Revenue (continued) 

Contract balances 

The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for sale of services where invoice 
is raised as trade receivables where invoice has not been raised as unbilled revenue and advance 
consideration as advance from customers. 

Performance obligations and revenue recognition policies 

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The 
Company recognises revenue when it transfers control over a good or service to a customer. The 
following details provide information about the nature and timing of the satisfaction of 
performance obligations in contracts with customers, including significant payment terms, and 
the related revenue recognition policies. 

a) Medical and healthcare services 

The Company’s revenue from medical and healthcare services comprises of income from hospital 
services. 

Revenue from hospital services to patients is recognised as revenue when the related services are 
rendered unless significant future uncertainties exist. Revenue is also recognised in relation to the 
services rendered to the patients who are undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet 
date to the extent of the services rendered. Revenue is recognised net of discounts and concessions 
given to the patients. 

Unbilled receivable represents value to the extent of medical and healthcare services rendered to 
the patients who are undergoing treatment/observation on the balance sheet date and is not billed 
as at the balance sheet date. 

b) Sale of medicines 

Revenue from sale of medical consumables and medicines within the hospital premises is 
recognised when the control in the goods are transferred to the customer and no significant 
uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of 
the goods and regarding its collection. The amount of revenue recognised is net of sales returns, 
taxes and duties, wherever applicable. 

c) Other operating income 

The Company’s revenue from other operating income comprises primarily of canteen sales (sales 
of food and beverages), revenue from courses conducted at the hospital, income from revenue 
sharing agreements. 

Revenue from services rendered is based on the agreements/arrangements with the customers as 
the service is performed. Income from sale of food and beverages is recognised at a point in time 
when control is transferred. 
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)  

3.8 Leases 

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease 

At inception of an arrangement, it is determined whether the arrangement is or contains a lease. 
At inception or on reassessment of the arrangement that contains a lease, the payments and other 
consideration required by such an arrangement are separated into those for the lease and those for 
other elements on the basis of their relative fair values. 

Company as a lessee 

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from 
non-lease components of the contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease 
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate 
stand-alone price of the non-lease components. 

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for 
the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at 
inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted 
for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives 
received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee 
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on 
which it is located. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated 
depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the 
lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The 
estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, 
plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any 
indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is 
recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss. 

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not 
paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest 
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily 
determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate. The lease payments shall include 
fixed payments, variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using 
the index or rate at the commencement date, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a 
purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments 
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to 
terminate the lease. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying 
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease 
payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease 
modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments. 

The Company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to modification 
as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset and standalone statement of profit and loss depending 
upon the nature of modification. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced 
to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company 
recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in standalone statement of profit and 
loss. 
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)  

3.8 Leases (continued) 

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116, Leases, to short-term 
leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less. The lease payments associated 
with these leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the 
lease liability and the right-of-use asset. The related payments are recognised as an expense in the 
period in which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs and are included in the 
line “Other expenses” in the standalone statement of profit and loss. 

3.9 Recognition of dividend income, interest income or interest expense 

Dividend income is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on the date on which the right 
to receive payment is established. 

Interest on deployment of surplus funds is recognized using the time proportionate method, based 
on the transactional interest rates. 

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.  

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or 
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the 
financial asset or the amortised cost of the financial liability.  

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross 
carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of 
the liability. 

3.10 Income tax 

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and loss 
except to the extent that it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other 
comprehensive income. 

i. Current tax 

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for 
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The 
amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received 
after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates 
(and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.  

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right 
to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on 
a net basis or simultaneously. 

A provision is recognised for those matters for which the tax determination is uncertain, but it is 
considered probable that there will be a future outflow of funds to a tax authority. The provisions 
are measured at the best estimate of the amount expected to become payable. The assessment is 
based on the judgement of tax professionals within the Company supported by previous 
experience in respect of such activities and in certain cases based on specialist independent tax 
advice. 
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)  

3.10 Income tax (continued) 

ii. Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding tax bases used for 
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax 
credits. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 
profits will be available against which they can be utilised. The existence of unused tax losses is 
strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of 
recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient 
taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit 
will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets – 
unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to 
the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be 
realised. 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset 
is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that 
would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover 
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 
tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the 
same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and 
assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously. 

3.11 Borrowing cost 

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign 
currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) 
incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to 
acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get 
ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset until such time as the 
asset is substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are recognised as 
an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

3.12 Financial instruments 

i. Recognition and initial measurement 

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All 
other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes 
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)  

3.12 Financial instruments (continued) 

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value, except for trade 
receivables that do not have a significant financing component which are measured at transaction 
price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets 
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss - FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or 
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable 
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are 
recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss. 

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement 

Financial assets 

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as either at amortised cost, FVTPL or fair 
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).  

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the 
period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets. 

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions: 

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect 
contractual cash flows; and  

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may 
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated 
as FVOCI – equity investment). This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis. 

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are 
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the 
Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be 
measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly 
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. 

Financial assets: Business model assessment 

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial 
asset Is held at investment level because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and 
information is provided to management. The information considered includes: 

- the stated policies and objectives for each of such investments and the operation of those 
policies in practice. These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning 
contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the 
duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash 
outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets; 

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held 
within that business model) and how those risks are managed; 

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for 
such sales and expectations about future sales activity. 
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)  

3.12 Financial instruments (continued) 

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement (continued) 

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition 
are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition 
of the assets. 

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on 
a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL. 

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal 
and interest 

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset 
on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for 
the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time 
and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g., liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well 
as a profit margin. 

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the 
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the 
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual 
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company 
considers: 

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;  
- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;  
- prepayment and extension features; and 
- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g., non-recourse 

features). 

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses 

Financial assets at 
FVTPL 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and 
losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss.  

Financial assets at 
amortised cost 

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by 
impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and 
losses and impairment are recognised in statement profit and loss. 
Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss. 
 

Equity investments at 
FVOCI 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are 
recognised as income in statement profit and loss unless the dividend 
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. 
Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not 
reclassified to statement of profit and loss. 
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)  

3.12 Financial instruments (continued) 

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement (continued) 

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses 

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability 
is classified as FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated 
as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net 
gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in the statement of profit and 
loss.  

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the statement 
of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in the statement of profit 
and loss. 

iii. Derecognition 

Financial assets 

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from 
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a 
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset 
are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks 
and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset. 
 
If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet 
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the 
transferred assets are not derecognised. 

Financial liabilities 

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged 
or cancelled or expire. 

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash 
flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability 
based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying 
amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms 
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

iii. Offsetting 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance 
sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the 
amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously. 
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued) 
3.13 Earnings / (loss) per share 

The basic earnings / (loss) per share (‘EPS’) is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after 
tax for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the year. 

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) after tax (including the post 
tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to 
expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, 
by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share 
and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the 
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period unless 
issued at a later date. In computing dilutive earnings per share, only potential equity shares that 
are dilutive, i.e., which reduces earnings per share or increases loss per share are included. The 
dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been 
actually issued at fair value (i.e. average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive 
potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The number of 
equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits/reverse share splits 
and bonus shares, as appropriate. 

3.14 Cash-flow statement 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the 
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash 
receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing 
activities of the Company are segregated. 

3.15 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with an 
original maturity of three months or less which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in 
value. 

3.16 Operating cycle 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its 
operating cycle. 
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